
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Approval of Minutes – August 21, 2017 

B. Mayor’s Proclamation – Constitution Week (September 17-23, 2017) 

C. Approval of Public Right of Way Application – CenturyLink 

D. Approval of  Public Right of Way Application – CenterPoint Energy 

E. Approval of  Exempt Gambling Permit – SBM Fire Department Raffle 

F. Approval of Temporary 1 Day Liquor License – Prince of Peace Church – October 6, 2017 

G. Approval of Resolution 17-29 Certifying Delinquent Account – Anoka County 

H. Correspondence 

7. PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

8. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

9. ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 

A. Resolution 17-25 Adopting Proposed 2017 Taxes Collectable in 2018 

B. Resolution 17-26 Cancelling or Reducing Bond Levies – 2017/2018 

C. Resolution 17-27 Approving a Variance to Allow Construction of a Deck at 7733 Lakeview Lane 

NE 

D. Resolution 17-28 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for a Boarding School at 1628 Highway 

10 NE  

10. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

11. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

12. REPORTS 

A. Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report 

13. OTHER 

A. Administrator Reports 

1. Performance Evaluation Process 

2. Schedule Council Work Session  

14. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2017 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person.  Longer presentations 

must be scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address.  Meetings are 

video recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the 

microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.”  

Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under 

advisement for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a 

proposed project.  This is not a time to debate the issue. 

 

The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 

 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 

 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project.  

Those wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes.  In cases 

where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective 

opinions voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is 

representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 

 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 

 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions 

of the presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will 

close the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until 

the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.  No further public input will be received at 

that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on August 21, 2017 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: Councilmember Nelson 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Engineer Gravel; Parks and 

Recreation Director Rygwall; Attorney Thames; Administrator Buchholtz and 

Executive Assistant Gooden  

 

Visitors: Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

 Michelle Hoppe, 7829 Monroe Street NE 

 Sandra Schneiderman, 8267 Pierce Street NE 

 Christine and Ron Geir, 8081 Garfield Street NE 

 Colleen Pederson, Spring Lake Park Schools 

 Perry Schmidt, CenterPoint Energy    

 Olivia Alveshere, ABC Newspapers      

      

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda - None 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor- None 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

A. Approval of Minutes – August 7, 2017 

B. Disbursements 

 1. General Fund Disbursement Claim No.  17-13 -- $498,124.44 

 2. Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No. 17-14--$184,806.58 

C. Budget to Date/Statement of Fund Balance 

D. Public Right of Way Application – CenturyLink 

E. Approval of Special Event Permit – 8200 Able Street (Able Park) 

F. Contractor’s Licenses 

G. Correspondence 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to the events scheduled for the Special Event Permit. Chief Ebeltoft stated 

that it will be an educational and an awareness event on overdose from an organization called Moving Forward. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA. ROLL 

CALL VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

7.  Presentation 

 

A.  CenterPoint Energy – Community Partnership Grant 

 

Perry Schmidt from CenterPoint Energy presented the Spring Lake Park Police Department with a check in the 

amount of $2,500.00 as part of the Community Partnership Grant.  The funds will be used for the purchase of 

new 800 MHz radios for the Spring Lake Park Police Officers. 

 

B.  Colleen Pederson – Spring Lake Park 5K Panther Run 

 

Colleen Pederson, Director of Community Education for Spring Lake Park Schools, provided information on 

the Panther Foundation 5K and Family Carnival on Saturday, September 30, 2017. She explained the race 

course through the City and the events that will be held. She reported that the new Spring Lake Park Panther 

mascot would be revealed at the event.  

 

8.  Police Report 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reviewed the July 2017 department statistics.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department responded to five hundred ninety seven calls for service for 

the month of July 2017 compared to five hundred sixty three calls for service in July 2016. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that Investigator Baker reported handling sixty four cases for the month of July.  He 

stated that Investigator Baker notes that he has seen an increase in cases being forwarded to him for 

investigation in the areas of motor vehicle thefts, criminal damage to property and fraud cases. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported, in addition to addressing the day-to-day operations of the Department, he attended 

numerous meetings throughout the month representing Spring Lake Park Police Department and the City of 

Spring Lake Park.  

 

9. Parks and Recreation Report 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the Parks and Recreation Commission met and reviewed 

their participation in the Tower Days activities.  She reported that the Commission volunteered at the softball 

tournaments and assisted in the concession stands. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that she picked up a large plant donation and the plants were distributed throughout the 

parks.  She stated that the Parks and Recreation Department hosted an appreciation dinner for the softball 

coaches. She reported that the softball tournaments were successful and thanked the Public Works Department 

and Councilmembers Wendling and Delfs for their assistance during the tournaments. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reviewed the department statistics and reported that staff has been taking registrations from the 

fall program brochure and reported that classes are already filling up. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

10.  Public Hearing 

 

A.  Public Hearing on Vacation of Road Easement – North of 81st Avenue 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City has received a petition from 100 percent of the property owners 

to vacate easements associated with the proposed Hy-Vee project.  He explained that there are two easements 

to be vacated – one north of 81st Avenue that runs through the City’s liquor store property and one on the east 

side of the property abutting CSAH 35. He stated that City staff has verified that the petition is adequate. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that with the redevelopment of the City’s municipal liquor store property 

and the development surrounding property into a 76,000 square foot grocery store and 8,500 square foot gas 

station/convenience store/coffee shop, the easement are no longer required.  He stated that the development 

will increase the City’s overall tax base, provide residents with a new grocery option, and create hundreds of 

new jobs. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that adoption of Resolution 17-24, a Resolution Vacating a Utility Easement 

Upon Petition of a Majority of Abutting Landowners, will vacate the easement north of 81st Avenue NE.  He 

stated that the CSAH 35 easement will be vacated at a later date once the turn-back of property is complete. 

 

B.  Public Hearing on Vacation of Road Easement – CSAH 35 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that the Public Hearing on the Vacation of Road Easements of North of 81st Avenue NE 

and CSAH 35 would be combined into one hearing.  

 

Mayor Hansen opened the Public Hearing for public comments at 7:15 PM.  Hearing no comments, Mayor 

Hansen asked for additional public comments. Hearing none, Mayor Hansen closed the public hearing at  

7:17 PM. 

 

11. Ordinances and/or Resolutions 

 

A.  Ordinance 440 Amending the Official Zoning Map and Creating a New Planned Unit Development 

 

Planner Carlson reported that Hy-Vee has applied for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) to develop a 

grocery store and small commercial building on the commercial property bounded by 81st Avenue, Central 

Avenue and Highway 65.  He stated the roughly 12-acre site is mostly vacant except for the municipal 

liquor store on the corner of 81st and Highway 65. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the project would develop a 76,000 square foot grocery store situated on the north 

part of the site, with parking on the south half of the site, and a new 8,700 square foot commercial building 

with a gas station, convenience store and coffee shop more or less in the location of the existing liquor 

store, which would be removed.  He stated that access would be at two driveway locations each on 81st and 

Central Avenues. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated the proposed grocery store and convenience store comply with the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan and Zoning. The property is guided Commercial on the City’s Land Use Plan and zoned C-1 Shopping 

Center Commercial. He reported that Section 153.151 of the zoning code notes that a PUD may allow those 

uses listed as permitted or conditional in the underlying zoning district.  He noted that in this project, the 

underlying zoning is C-1, which allows retail uses such as grocery store and a convenience store as 

permitted uses, and automobile services uses as a conditional use.  



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the proposed grocery store provides a public benefit. He stated that the code notes 

in Section 153.160: 

 

 (D) Public Benefit. 

  (1) The PUD results in at least one of the public benefits as outlined in §§153.150 

  (2) The PUD is consistent with and advances the community-wide goals of the     

                                Comprehensive Plan. 

 

He stated that in this case, the proposed PUD may be considered to offer the following benefits to the 

community: 

 Providing a full-service grocery store in the City 

 Providing a sidewalk along 81st Avenue along the southern edge of the development 

 Providing sidewalk along the west side of Central Avenue from 81st Avenue to the store 

entrance 

 Providing a sidewalk connection from the bus stop on Central Avenue north of 81st Avenue 

into the convenience store and grocery store, in a nicely landscaped setting. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the parking for the project appears to be adequate. He stated that the required 

parking for the two uses is calculated according to the City’s Zoning Code standards at 467 stalls. He stated 

that Hy-Vee is proposing to provide 455 stalls.  

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the grocery building height is 35 feet at its tallest and meets the C-1 Zoning Code 

height limit of 45 feet.  He stated the maximum allowed impervious surface coverage in the C-1 District is 

75%. He noted that the impervious coverage of the site is calculated on the Site Plan separately for the 

grocery store lot and the C-store lot.  He stated the C-store lot is just over at 77% impervious surface the 

overall site average of 66% impervious surface is well below the limit of 75%. This flexibility is a 

reasonable consideration within a PUD. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the landscape plan is varied, generous and creative. He noted that along Highway 

65 there is continuous but varied landscaping along the wetland, grocery building, and C-store. He noted 

that next to the grocery store parking lot, there is a narrow line of landscape shrubs along Highway 65, but 

they are within the MnDOT right-of-way. He stated that it would be recommended the design and 

dimensions of the parking lot be revisited to allow for additional setback to take the landscaping out of the 

MnDOT right-of-way in this area. 

 

Mr. Carlson explained that all the lighting is LED and must be down-cast cutoff type fixtures. He stated 

that the lighting in the parking lot will be on 30 foot poles with a number of wall-mounted fixtures on the 

buildings under the gas pump canopy.  He noted that lighting levels on the plan indicate less than 1 foot –

candle-wall at all edges of the site, which is acceptable. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that Site Plan final approval shall be contingent upon review and approval of detailed 

Site and Utility Construction Plans/Specifications by the Public Works Director and the City Engineer. He 

noted several items that would be subject to approval. He noted that final review of the detailed Site and 

Utility Construction Plans will include (but not be limited to) a review of: 

 

 Watermain fittings, valves, hydrants, connections location(s) etc. 

 Sanitary sewer connection locations and details. 

 Street excavation patching details, and related items. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

 Street improvement plans for 81st Avenue NE and CSAH 35. 

 Sidewalk and trail construction. 

 Stormwater management system. 

 Lighting plan. 

 Traffic, including off-site modifications that may be required as a result of issues identified within 

traffic study. 

 

He stated that review of the plat along 81st Avenue NE, the review of plat shall include a right-of-way 

dedication that provides a minimum of 33-feet of right-of-way from centerline, or 5-feet from the back of 

the street curb, whichever is greater. He also noted that the review will include the plat along Central 

Avenue/CSAH 35, the proposed right-of-way line at 50-feet from centerline is acceptable (subject to 

approval process from Anoka County).  

 

Mr. Carlson stated that there are concerns about the impact of traffic from the development on the adjacent 

streets including the intersection TH65 and 81st Avenue NE. He stated the applicant shall submit a traffic 

study evaluating the impact of the proposed development on adjacent streets including recommendations 

for mitigating impacts.  He noted that the applicant shall be responsible for the necessary development 

driven street improvements. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that staff recommended that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 

Planned Unit Development as submitted by Hy-Vee, Inc. for the project at 81st Avenue and Highway 65, 

with the following conditions. 

 

1. If approved, the site plan, architectural plans, sign plan, and all other plans will be the approved 

use of the property under the PUD and any significant change to those plans must be reviewed and 

approved by the City Council. 

 

2. All conditions noted in the Planning staff memo under Engineering and Public Works comments. 

 

3. The applicant will consider revision to the arrangement and dimensions of the grocery store parking 

lot in order to provide additional setback to Highway 65 and additional landscaping in that location, 

to be reviewed and approved by the City Planner and City Engineer. 

 

4. The applicant will submit plans for the four freestanding signs proposed and apply for sign permits 

for all signage if approved within this PUD. 

 

5. All lighting will be LED, down-cast cutoff type fixtures, and maintain less than 1 foot-candle at the 

outside edge of the site at all locations. 

 

6. Site Plan approval will not be granted until Site and Utility Construction Plans/Specifications are 

reviewed and approved by the Public Works Director and the City Engineer as detailed in this 

report. 

 

7. A traffic study will be prepared and submitted for review evaluating the impact of the proposed 

development on adjacent streets and on the intersection of 81st Avenue and Highway 65. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

8. The applicant will meet all other conditions noted in this report from the City Engineer and Public 

Works Director, including entering into a Development Agreement to cover all aspects of designs, 

construction, fees and costs. 

 

Planner Carlson stated that the presentation had not changed from when it was presented to the Planning 

Commission on July 24, 2017.  He stated that the entire City Council was present for the initial presentation. 

He noted that some of the traffic study comments have been received since the meeting and that comments 

from MNDOT are still expected to be submitted. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to when MnDOT would be submitting their comments for review. 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that he had spoken with MnDOT and expected the comments to be received 

soon. 

 

Phil Hoey, Hy-Vee, confirmed that it is the same presentation as what was presented to the Planning 

Commission.  He stated that the traffic study had been submitted to MnDOT and there could be some changes 

based on the comments received. He stated that any traffic reconfigurations that are proposed will be a good 

thing for the intersections and Hy-Vee is committed to make the site access changes work. He stated that only 

major changes that he foresees with the proposed plan is the access points on 81st Avenue. He stated the changes 

will not impact a smaller building or loss of parking. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz asked the Council if he could authorize minor changes. The Council was in 

agreement. 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that the site plan is currently being reviewed by Rice Creek Watershed and the 

Watershed will be submitting comments soon.  He stated that Anoka County will be submitting comments 

regarding CSAH 35.   

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 440 AMENDING 

THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK AND CREATING A NEW 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Resolution 17-20 Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 440 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 17-20 AUTHORIZING 

SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE 440, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL 

ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK AND CREATING A NEW PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C. Resolution 17-19 Approving Hy-Vee First Addition of Spring Lake Park Preliminary Plat  

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN APPROVING RESOLUTION 17-19 APPROVING HY-VEE 

ADDITION OF SPRING LAKE PARK PRELIMINARY PLAT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D. Resolution 17-24 Vacating Road Easement North of 81st Avenue NE 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 17-24 VACATING A UTILITY 

EASEMENT UPON PETITION OF A MAJORITY OF LANDOWNERS. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. 

MOTION CARRIED. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

12.  New Business 

 

A.  Authorize Recruitment of Full Time Police Records Management Technician 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reported that staff is seeking authority to begin the recruitment process for a Full-Time 

Police Records Management Technician.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department lost its part-time Police Receptionist in March 2017.  He 

stated that the position has been vacant since that time to allow the City Council to discuss the possibility of 

allocating funds to the 2018 budget to reclassify the Police Receptionist position to a Record Management 

Technician and make the position full-time.  He stated that the City Council, at its budget workshop on August 

14, came to consensus to include the new position in the 2018 budget.  He stated the City Council, at the 

workshop, recommended authorizing staff to begin the recruitment process. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO AUTHORIZE RECRUITMENT OF FULL TIME POLICE 

RECORDS MANAGEMENT TECHNICIAN.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

13.  Engineer’s Report 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that the contractor has completed the seal coat work and initial sweeping for the Seal 

Coat Project.  He stated that a second sweeping and pavement markings will follow this month.  He reported 

that Visu-Sewer has completed some of the sanitary sewer-lining project and the remaining lining work will 

be completed over the next few months.  

 

14.  Attorney’s Report 

 

Attorney Thames reported that he will be working on the Development Agreement with Hy-Vee.  

 

15.  Reports 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff reported that she attended a ribbon cutting ceremony for the new wetland 

project in Blaine. She reported that she toured Life Prep Academy and stated she saw many positives in the 

concept of the Academy.  

 

16.  Other  

 

A.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City Council budget workshop, it was reported that a tax forfeited 

property on Buchanan Street NE is available to the City. He explained that if the lot is acquired by a conditional 

use deed from the state, it could only be used for limited purposes. He stated that if the property were to be 

purchased for the market value of $2,000, the City can use the property for any public use it chooses. 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that she was in favor of purchasing the property since it could benefit local businesses. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO AUTHORIZE PURCHASE OF TAX FORFEITED 

PROPERTY (PID 01-30-24-31-0071) IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,000.00. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 AUGUST 21, 2017 

 

16.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:50 PM. 

 

 

        

 

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



























The Code Enforcement Report will be distributed at the Council meeting. 





Memorandum 
To: Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From: Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date: August 28, 2017 

Subject: 2018 Preliminary Levy 

The City Council, at its August 14 workshop, reviewed the proposed 2018 Administrator’s budget 
proposal.  As the preliminary levy is required to be submitted no later than September 30, 2017, it 
is necessary for the City Council to take action to set the preliminary levy. 

Resolution 17-25 establishes the proposed 2017, pay 2018, tax levy at $3,282,441.  This is an 
increase of 4.67% from the 2016, pay 2017, tax levy.  A portion of this increase is associated with 
the elimination of the part-time Police Receptionist position and the creation of a third full-time 
Police Records Management Technician position.  The remainder of the increase is associated 
with anticipated increases in the City budget. 

The Resolution sets the date of the annual Truth-in-Taxation (TNT) public hearing for Monday, 
December 4, 2017 at 7pm at City Hall. 

The preliminary tax levy establishes the maximum tax levy for 2017, pay 2018.  The final tax levy, 
which will be set on December 18, 2017, can be the same or lower than the preliminary tax levy. 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





RESOLUTION NO. 17-25 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PROPOSED 2017 TAXES COLLECTABLE IN 2018 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka and 

Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, that the following sums of money be levied for the current year, 

collectable in 2018, upon the taxable property in said City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota: 

 

General Revenue     $3,018,257 

2013A G.O. Equipment Certificate   $   174,184 

2014A G.O. Improvement Bonds   $     90,000 

TOTAL LEVY:     $3,282,441 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk of the City of Spring Lake Park is 

hereby instructed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to the County Auditors of Anoka 

and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual Truth in Taxation Public Hearing is 

scheduled to be held at 7:00 P.M. on Monday, December 4, 2017 in the Council Chambers, 

Spring Lake Park City Hall. 

 

 

The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember    . 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye:   

 

And the following voted nay:   

 

Whereupon the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this 5th day of 

September, 2017. 

 

 

            

      Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 

 

 

 

  





 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  August 28, 2017 

Subject: Cancel Bond Levies 
 
State Law requires the County Auditor to levy the amount of debt service originally certified unless 
the City passes a resolution cancelling the levy.  Resolution 17-26 would cancel three debt service 
levies and reduce a fourth due to the City having funds on-hand to make the debt service payment. 
 
The following debt service levies would be reduced by the proposed resolution: 
 
Issue Original Proposed 
2013B GO CIP Bond (Public Works Building) $  80,000 $           0 
2014A GO Improvement Bond (Street Projects) $224,000 $  90,000 
2016A GO Capital Note (NMTV cable upgrade) $  13,124.16 $           0 
2017A GO Equipment Certificate (SBM Equipment) $249,585 $           0 

 
The following bonds are reduced due to a combination of Local Government Aid, Public Utilities 
funds, Special Assessments, Municipal State Aid funds, and General Fund budget allocations. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 





RESOLUTION NO. 17-26 

RESOLUTION CANCELLING OR REDUCING BOND LEVIES – 2017/2018 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka and 

Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, that there is irrevocably available and on-hand funds for the 

following General Obligation bonds: 

1. The sum of $80,000 for the 2018 installment of the 2013B G.O. Capital Improvement

Plan Bond.

2. The sum of $134,000 for the 2018 installment of the 2014A G.O. Improvement Bond.

3. The sum of $13,124.16 for the 2018 installment of the 2016A GO Capital Note

4. The sum of $249,585 for the 2018 installment of the 2017A GO Equipment Certificate

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, in accordance with Minnesota Statutes Section 

475.61, as amended from time to time, the County Auditors of Anoka and Ramsey Counties are 

hereby authorized and directed to reduce by the amounts above mentioned the tax that would 

otherwise be included on the rolls for 2017, collectable in 2018. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk of the City of Spring Lake Park is 

hereby instructed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to the County Auditors of Anoka 

and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota. 

The foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye:  . 

And the following voted nay: 

Whereupon the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this 5th day of 

September, 2017. 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator 





RESOLUTION NO. 17-27 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ALLOW CONSTRUCTION OF A 

DECK AT 7733 LAKEVIEW LANE NE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Matt and Becky Hedgers, 7733 Lakeview Lane NE, have made application 

for a variance from Section 153.061of the Zoning Code to allow a deck to be constructed within 

the required 8 foot setback between principal and accessory structures; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as follows: 

 

The West 75 feet of Lot 3, Block 1 Lakeview Addition, subject to easement of 

record; and 

 

WHEREAS, mailed and published notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed 

variance was given; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the proposed variance was held on August 28, 

2017; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the request was made for construction of a deck attached to the principal 

structure, which would result in the detached garage (accessory structure) to be only 3 feet from 

the principal structure, which is five feet less than the 8 foot separation required under Section 

153.061 of the Zoning Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the application against the practical 

difficulties test as outlined in Section 153.224 of the Spring Lake Park Zoning Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval finding that the 

proposed variance is a reasonable use of the property, that the variance will not alter the essential 

character of the locality, and that the layout of the house precludes the property owner from shifting 

the deck to the west, a situation that was not created by the property owner.   

 

 WHEREAS, the Spring Lake Park City Council has reviewed the application and hereby 

accepts the findings and recommendation of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves the request of Matt and Becky 

Hedgers for a variance from the strict interpretation of Section 153.061 of the Zoning Code. 

 

  



 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  

 

And the following voted against the same:. 

 

 

 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 5th day of September, 

2017. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 

 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  August 29, 2017 

Subject: Hedgers Variance Request 
 
The City received a request for an after the fact variance to permit the construction of a deck 
within the 8 foot required setback between a principal structure, of which the deck is an extension 
of, and an accessory structure (the detached garage). 
 
City staff recommended denial of the variance for a number of reasons as outlined within the staff 
report.  A copy of the staff report to the Planning Commission is included in the packet for your 
review. 
 
After hearing public comment from Matt and Becky Hedgers, the Planning Commission decided 
to recommend approval of the variance on a 4-1 vote.  The Commission believed that the layout of 
the house precluded the ability of the Hedgers to shift the deck five feet to the west in order to 
accommodate the setback as required under Section 153.061(D) of the Zoning Code.  Instead of 
being able to access the deck from the kitchen, the deck would need to be accessed through a 
bedroom.  In addition, the Commission also believed that the aesthetic appearance of the property 
would be impacted if the deck was shifted to comply with the Code as it would extend out from 
the side of the house be three feet.  The possibility of moving the detached garage back further 
into the rear yard was also explored, but would likely have resulted in the reconstruction of the 
garage, which would have been infeasible. 
 
In a normal circumstance, this code violation would have been caught during the footing 
inspection.  However, due to the contractor using diamond pier footings, a footing inspection was 
not required.  Instead, the code violation was noticed during the final inspection.  The3 foot 
separation between the deck and the garage complies with International Building Code.  In 
addition, the submitted site plan did not clearly outline the location of the deck in relation to the 
garage. 
 
If the City Council is comfortable with the variance as recommended by the Planning 
Commission, the Council should approve Resolution 17-27.  If the City Council wishes to 
overrule the Commission’s recommendation, staff will have an alternative resolution for the City 
Council to adopt. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the variance, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-
6491. 





 

   

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: August 28, 2017 
 
To:  Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
 
From:  Beth Elliott, AICP, City Planner 
 
RE: Kingdom Homes Inc. 

7733 Lakeview Lane NE 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Kingdom Homes Inc, on behalf of Matt Hedgers, has applied for a variance to build a 22x20 foot 
deck within the 8-foot setback of a principal structure to an accessory structure at 7733 Lakeview 
Lane NE.  
 
Lakeview Lane NE is a segment of road 
that runs east from Central Avenue NE 
and then turns south toward Osborne 
Road NE.  The property sits just west of 
Spring Lake and is 22,500 square feet – 75 
feet wide and 300 feet deep.  The 
property and its surrounding neighbors all 
contain single-family homes.  
 
The applicant is requesting an after-the-
fact variance - the deck has been 
constructed 3 feet from the detached 
garage.  The deck is required to meet the 
eight-foot setback requirement from an 
accessory structure.  Chapter 153.061 of 
the zoning code indicates that “a 
detached accessory building shall not be 
closer than eight feet to the principal 
building.” The deck is considered part of 
the principal structure since it is attached 
to the back of the house and is therefore 
not complying with this section of the 
code. 
 
The property owner approached City staff 
about his intention to build the deck and 
was provided with a handout that 
explains the setback requirement (see attached).  He then built the deck without a permit.  The 



August 20, 2017 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
Page 2 of 4  
 
Re: Hedgers Deck Variance 
 
 

 

City became aware of the deck’s construction once the property owner came in for a permit and 
an inspector inspected the newly-constructed deck. 
 
The deck is 20 feet wide and adjacent to a garage that is approximately 22 feet wide.  The lot 
itself is 75 feet wide and the garage sits just parallel to the eastern property line.  Therefore, there is 
adequate space to move the deck west out of the required setback.  It is the City’s understanding 
that the deck was built using diamond piers rather than concrete footings and should be easier to 
move west.  The deck could be moved five feet to the west without a setback conflict. 
 
PLANNING ISSUES DISCUSSION  
 

1) Comprehensive Plan and Zoning.  The property is guided Low Density Residential in the 
2030 Comprehensive Plan. Zoning is R-1 Single Family Residential – allowed uses include 
single-family homes and duplexes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



August 20, 2017 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
Page 3 of 4  
 
Re: Hedgers Deck Variance 
 
 

 

 
2) Criteria for Considering Variances. The zoning code, in Sect. 153.224, outlines the criteria for 

considering variances: 
 

The City Council may grant a variance from the strict application of this title and 
impose conditions and safeguards on the variance so granted only in instances where 
their strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties in complying with the official 
control because of circumstances unique to the individual property under 
consideration, and may grant a variance only when it is demonstrated that such 
actions will be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this title and when 
the variances are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. "Practical difficulties" as 
used in connection with the granting of a variance means that the property owner 
proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official 
control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential 
character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical 
difficulties. Practical difficulties also includes, but is not limited to, direct sunlight for solar 
energy systems. A variance shall not be granted to allow a use that is not allowed in 
the zoning district involved. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We recommend that the Planning Commission deny the deck variance located at 7733 Lakeview 
Lane NE with these findings: 
 



August 20, 2017 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
Page 4 of 4  
 
Re: Hedgers Deck Variance 
 
 

 

1. Requiring the deck to comply with the established setback does not cause practical 
difficulties unique to the individual property. 

2. The property owner was adequately informed of the eight-foot principal building setback 
from an accessory building prior to construction beginning on the deck. 

3. The deck could be moved to the west without compromising the west side yard setback 
and is therefore not in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the code. 

4. Chapter 153.222 of the zoning code requires a permit prior to proceeding with any 
construction, alternation, repair, enlargement, demolition, or removal of any building. 

5. The property can reasonably be used without the variance. 
6. There are no unique circumstances on this property that require the deck to be built within 

the setback. 
7. The use of the property as a single-family home is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Development application 
• Deck handout 

 



For Q,ffice U!:i� On�y 

Case Number: 
Spring Lake Park 

Hish)ry. Comrnunit)'. Hume. 

City of Spring Lake Park 
1301 8151 Avenue NE 

Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 
763-784-6491 (p) 763-792-7257 (f) 

info@slpmn.org 

Fee Paid: 

Date Com 
Base Fee: 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 
TYPE OF APP�ICATION (Che�k All That Apply) 

Escrow: 

D Appeal D Site Plan/Building Plan Review D Minor Subdivision 
o Comprehensive Plan Amendment D Conceptual Plan Review D Lot Combination 
D Ordinance Amendment (Text) D Conditional Use Permit o Preliminary Plat 
D Rezoning )(Variance o Final Plat 
o Planned Unit Development D Street or Easement Vacation D Other 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
"' ' -

Street Address: 17 33 I IJ.k..f Vl�C'I.) LAr-'[ 
Property Identification Number (PIN#): Current Zoning: �'i.S.. 
Legal Description (Attach if necessary): 

APPLICANT INfeORMAT'ION 
., 

Name: Kv.JbDOM H <J /:'\ ES J:;' r-JL. I Business Name: 
Address: 12.2..bo l c::i S'lvi l..Aµ [_ jV,1-J. 
City �L-K. }l<u � I State: .A\ jJ. Zip Code: <" )3 -z,f'l 
Telephone: t_, 12- S5°1 °10 b� I Fax: E-mail: J<v-i 6 o o ,,.,,l s--to I" 
Contact: ,.j 'i..f f. L{ <J fL IC,Vl Title: b w µUl �,,._., 

/.) / 
-

OWNER INFORMA:TION (if different from applicant) 
-· - '- � I' 

i c� 
Name: /\/\ f\ l{'l'i' 'J-1. <i.. {) (-?'i 0 C" I Business Name: 
Address: "L 133 t.ilY..£\/;bv i_A/....>f 
City .sP�v.lbLAk L {)A fZ-X I State: (VIA} Zip Code: .5 5 !J:i '/ 
Telephone: fo �1._ 31) t,1_ D (;, I Fax: E-mail: 
Contact: MAI)'! Title: 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST (attach additional information if needed) 

Existing Use of Property: 

Nature of Proposed Use: "fL-J!L v ll/L( A..) c.. [ 

Reason(s) to Approve Request: V AK-1 A .I C. ( f"o {{_ D { Ct'i 

PIJCl;VIQUS APPLICATION� PER,�AINING TO T:H-= S\IQ.}E,:CT SITE 

Project Name: h)j"Y( I Date of Application: /-:S\-(£ 
Nature of Request: 

N0TiE: AfDplications emly acceptecl with ALL required su121por1 cl0cumeAts. 11 See City Gode -



APPLICATION FEES AND EXPENSES: 

The City of Spring Lake Park required all applicants to reimburse the City for any and all costs incurred by the 
City to review and act upon applications. 

The application fee includes administrative costs which are necessary to process the application. The escrow fee 
will include all charges for staff time by the City Planner, City Engineer, City Attorney, and/or any other 
consultants as needed to process the application. 

· 

The City will track all consultant costs associated with the application. If these costs are projected to exceed the 
money initially deposited to your escrow account, you will be notified in the manner that you have identified below 
that additional monies are required in order for your application process to continue. If you choose to terminate 
the application (notice must be in writing), you will be responsible for all costs incurred to that point. If you 
choose to continue the process you will be billed for the additional monies and an explanation of expenses will be 
furnished. Remittance of these additional fees will be due within thirty (30) days from the date the invoice is 
mailed. If payment is not received as required by this agreement, the City may approve a special assessment for 
which the property owner specifically agrees to be to be assessed for 100 percent per annum and waives any 
and all appeals under Minnesota Statutes Section 429.081 as amended. All fees and expenses are due 
whether the application is approved or denied. 

With my signature below, I hereby acknowledge that I have read this agreement in its entirety and understand the 
terms herein. I agree to pay to the City all costs incurred during the review process as set forth in this 
Agreement. This includes any and all expenses that exceed the initial Escrow Deposit to be paid within 30 days 
of billing notification. I further understand that the application process will be terminated if payment is not made 
and application may be denied for failure to reimburse City for costs. I further understand that the City may 
approve a special assessment against my property for any unpaid escrows and that I specifically waive any and 
all appeals under Minnesota Statutes 429.081, as amended. 

-------- D USPS - Certified Mail 

I, the undersigned, hereby apply for the considerations described above and declare that the information 
and materials submitted in support of this application are in compliance with adopted City policy and 
ordinance requirements are complete to the best of my knowledge. 

I acknowledge that I have read the statement entitled "Application Fees and Expenses" as listed above. 

I understand that this application will be processed in accordance with established City review 
procedures and Minnesota Statutes Section 15.99 as amended, at such time as it is determined to be 
complete. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 15.99, the City will notify the applicant within fifteen 
(15) business days from the filing date of any incomplete or other information necessary to complete the 
application. Failure on my part to supply all necessary information as requested by the City may be 
cause for denying this application. 

Applicant: -�K�w_G�v_o_M __ k�o ...... Pd�£.�S"��I�r-'_C_ ·------:H---

Owner: _,.,..--_,__,! L=-:_f_;:_'{_u_f!-<_a'l__,__ __ C7____;_t0..._<J_�_=t ___ _ 

Date: 7 - 3 ( - /"l 

Date: 7 . '-3 I . I 7 

NO:fE·: Application·s only accepted with ALL required suppbrt docµments. 
See Cit,y Code 



City of Spring Lake Park 
Variance Application 

A variance cannot be approved unless the Planning Commission and City Council find that the "practical 
difficulties" standard has been met. Please provide a response as to how/why your project will meet the 
following criteria. Use additional sheets if necessary and consult with the Zoning Administrator if you 
need clarification on the intent of any of the standards set below. 

1. Applicant lnformatio�: 

Name: k\ {\l?)dDro �� � � · 

Address: /@:7.leO /qCS - � N c W � 

City/State/Zip: £1 k .u.ve� i mN 5'5310 I 
2. Property Owner Information (if different from above): 

Telephone: l.oJd- � C�/5 '1 - CJCJ f.t>) 
Cell Phone: 121 )- '5 5 C/ - gq wc;;
E-mail: ki&jdcr«Ih<x(l\.LS[l}.b Q CJfYl..a.tl • C6YV1 

Name: \\A Ct tt � {6.eck,Y, }k&qelL� Telephone: {p J;i .... �l-1.o;x>l.o 
Address: I\ �3 Ltt.ll.a.-V)-t-W L@N_ f\]£, Cell Phone: f.pt().-{J;l/4-68 /� 
City/State/Zip: �ci�:£au � fY/N 5'543dt-mail: ���.s @�12-i's:�Ut.sRI� 

"'Be�" He&qe;e �vru.U-11� co rV\ 
3. Project Location (Address and Legal Description): 116? L+ILJ2..vl-tw IA.flO.- N £� 
4. Present Use of Property :._jk1-' �$........,i�:::;... · _.-fi..;....:..."_t&--"----- -----------
5. Description of Project:._....i.d..:;. .. ...:.J�"'--'--')('"""·=---=d-{):....-..;'----))&)L-""....;:....;;=--�----------
6. Specify Section of the Ordinance from which variance is sought: Seeii"oYl ) 63' 0 lo / {D) 
7. Explain how you wish to vary from the applicable provisions of this Ordinance:. _____ _ 

ktJL is se+ba_c t- g� Jk4>Y'(\ � ��� iJ)YvLlY< 
B fr rs @f3!1-vrd b1� D�. 

8. Please attach a site plan or accurate survey as may be required by Ordinance. 

9. Practical Difficulties Test: Please answer the following questions as they relate to your specific 
variance request. 

a. In your opinion, is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the Ordinance? 
0 Yes 0 No Why or why not? 



/ 

b. In your opinion, is the variance consistent with the Comprehensive Plan? 
Cl Yes Cl No Why or why not? 

� e�, see. a.+t-a ... e� 

c. In your opinion, does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
Cl Yes Cl No Why or why not?. 

d. In your opinion, are there circumstances unique to the property? (physical characteristics of 
the property- i.e. sloping topography or other natural features like wetlands or trees)? 
CJ Yes Cl No Why or why not? 

1?�,S<:c a �  

e. In your opinion, will the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 
CJ Yes 1:J No Why or why not? 

PU-i:vx, >;ee a.J!Ju� 

The Planning Commission must make an affirmative finding on all of the five criteria listed above in 
order to grant a variance. The applicant for a variance has the burden of proof to show that all of the 
criteria listed above have been satisfied. 

The undersigned certifies that they are familiar with application fees and other associated costs and also 
with the procedural requirements of the City Code and other applicable ordinances. 

Applicant Signature: Date: 

Date: 

1 / z01 n 



Matt and Becky Hedgers 
7733 Lakeview Lane NE 
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 

7/28/2017 

City of Spring Lake Park 
Planning Commission and City Council 
1301 a1st Ave North East 
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 

Dear City of Spring Lake Park: 

We are requesting a variance the City Code Section 153.061 (D) to allow a deck to be located 3 feet 
from the detached garage where 8 feet is required by ordinance. On May 31, 2017, we were issued 
a building permit for a 22' by 20' deck located on the north side of our home. We have a small 
house and growing family. Our goal with the size and location of the deck is to create additional 
gathering space for our family and guests as an extension of our home. 

A building permit was approved and issued. The deck setback from the garage meets MN State 
Building Code Requirements. It was not until the final inspection that we were made aware of the 
zoning violation and the required setback between the deck and the garage. Included in this 
application are the plans that were submitted for the building permit. 

We hope that the Planning Commission considers our request and makes a recommendation for 
approval to the City Council. Below outlines the findings for the practical difficulties in meeting the 
ordinance requirements. 

Practical Difficulties Test: Please answer the following questions as they relate to your specific 

variance request. 

a. In your opinion, is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the Ordinance? 

X Yes _No, Why or why not? 

It seems as though the intent of the ordinance is to provide separation between the deck (principle 
structure) and the detached garage. The setback meets the building code requirement for fire safety. 
The plans that were submitted show the deck close to the detached garage. If there was an issue with 
the setback a building permit should not have been issued. 

b. In your opinion, is the variance consistent with the Comprehensive Plan? 

X Yes _No Why or why not? 



City of Spring Lake Park 

7/28/2017 

Page 2 

Yes. The property is guided as Lo� Density Residential with allowed residential uses such as decks. The 

property is occupied by a house,iattached deck, and detached garage. The request is consistent with 

comprehensive plan. 

c. In your opinion, does the prQposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? · 

X Yes _No Why or why not? · 

Decks are allowed as an accessory use in the Single Family Residential (R-1) zoning district. The 

property is proposed to be used in a reasonable manner. 

d. In your opinion, are there circumstances unique to the property? (physical characteristics of 

the property- i.e. sloping top�graphy or other natural features like wetlands or trees)? 

X Yes __ No Why or why not? 

The property was platted in 1948 and further allowed to be subdivided to create long and narrow 

lots. The property is unique as �he house is central to the property width and the detached garage 

was relatively close to the hous�. There would be undue hardship if the deck was required to meet 

the ordinance or removed, sine¢ a building permit was already issued. 

i 
e. In your opinion, will the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 

X Yes _No Why or why not? i 

The character of the area included homes with decks and attached/detached garages. The deck is 

not easily seen from the road or from the neighboring properties because of the location of the 

landscaping on the west side and the detached garage on the east side. The location of the deck is 

fits the design and aesthetics of the home. The deck does not change the essential character of the 

area. 

Thank you for your consideratitjn. 

Sincerely, 

Matt and Becky Hedgers 

Enclosure 



l<INGDO II HOMES INC 
12260 195th Lane NW Elk River Mn. 55330 #8(696197 May 12th, 2017 

Kingdom Homes Inc is requesting a deck permit for I 
Matt and Becky Hedgers 

m3 Lakeview Lane 

Spring Lake Park, MN. 

Deck is 27 inches off ground 

Will be attached to house 

22 x 20 Green treated joists one foot on center 

Trex decking 

Diamond Pier Footings throughout 

Thank you, 

Jeff J Yurich 

<7-tt O l __:_..( 
Kingdom Homes Inc. 



-··-··�- . .  

-:-- - --:-- -· -·-- f- --

i 
·-····- y 

�--·-· · ·--

·1...-.• 

·-- .. L ·-·�---·�-:- -- -- --·-·�---· 

' 
·-··�---··· 

;_ ____ _ _ -···

.

-··· 

. - ·····-·

·

_::_ __ .;-----··· --··-·

.

-·-

-··-· -�-- --·- :··r 

.. !···. +. . 
-:- .. 

: ... . , . 

. ·;-- .\. ... . . . :-· . 



.-
. ; +-

. . . 

. --- .. i-·-- . 

···- ·., 
'.- _____ )_,._ --·<- ··-·. ···�----·-

i
-·· 

·--·-

-·-····-· . . ··- · ·. ----·,-·- · · ··-·-·--

, ____ ·.-····-·- ···--·-. · 

--·--··'.- ·  --+-·-··:
·

--·---.-

··C-·- · -· 

·, ·-···- - ) ··f-.. ·J- ). �--
.
·-- l - � .. )J . . ;--l- . 

·- ___ 
:.....,_ 

- -··-·-·-:-·-··�-.- . : --: ---.'- - ·---- ··--.-·- .! .. ..• ···'---:···· 

:..-.. j . . 

--:- --- . 

-;·-· 
' 

·-- :-·-··· 
i . ..... ·-· I 

' l :- �)-�_· ... . '..-;-- - ·-;-----: : :\.�· 

. . . ! . •. , 

i __ --- -.: :·_�: .. �- -
·-. . : ... . · I 

..:.·'- ,, . . 

-- - -. - - -.. -�r 
. --·· - .! 

-
1 - ' _j_+-7----'---:; L . . .. d:i'-f;;� - - ··· · --

,-

,  
.
. ..  

i . ·- .. ·-· -:--·-· .. .. ... .. . . _.. tl ·tf \ 

. - .
.

. -; ....... ;-· 

·:---:-·--;·· 

· + 
. . _ ...

. / ..... ... ·-
-

-. . .. 

; i, 
·- --�- ---·;·-

: ____ -· .-· 

· . .  

' . ; .. . : ____ _ . -

. . ... -=---···· 

__ : ____ . 

· ...
.
.. . 

.. :···· 

!.. .
.••. · ..

.
.

.  

.... t--- .. �--<--- �. ·cg. ····:-· 

' · 

.... C � : 
. . 

:

· ·
·

- · ··
-.:

,c_s 
��$�(/' . 

· -------, · -···-·· 

;_ ______ -:- ··-· 

"-- � .. .,, 
·· ··� 

. ·  . . .  

·- · : . . 

· - · - :·-·· · 

... L .. .  

_'._ _ _  , .  

( 
-··----

;.... 

..... 

-
--:-·

·
(-

·
·

·· 

. . .-... . .  t .  

· ··,·-· · 

. ' 



. ,.. 
....... 

· . ..1, 

. , 
... 
_,. 

I 

I 

I 

I <J 
i) 

�·\ � · .. -. .. 
� .. - � J .. " ... {1'. t ,; ·'..�I 

\ \ 

I ! I 

�L-····�·· 
.. :---r--� ' ' '; _.:...:..-1 

... - --···) 
L---' 

.'J 

J 

,,, .... :- � 

... : 
,· ... 

� c I 
" 
,.. 
.,, 

/''I 
';. 

,2 
"' ·• 
r. i 

,, .. �---· ........ �··..... . . .... 
L \ . \ , ·•I 

__ .. \. \ �j \ '·'\)\...•'"\ 
\ ··-'./ _,. ., 

'.\· 
I 
r.--1: { . 

i '· \ . 

�-" 
i 

� i I 

J .. 

I ·---· .... -·.,,,,· 
.......... _ 

..... 
.. 

·- ,. 
._. 

" .::--· 
l-

.. ;i 
!. 

\ ::-
:o. -· 

� -';: ... 
. .,, 

·-. '! 

.. £ � ..... 
;>( ,,. 

,.._J ') 

-:· , .. 



ADDRESS : 

PIN : 

LEGAL DESC : 

: 
PERMIT TYPE : 

PROPERTY TYPE : 
CONSTRUCTION TYPE : 

VALUATION : 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 
1301 81ST A VE. NE 

SPRING LAKE PARK, MN 55432-
(763) 784-6491 FAX: (763) 792-7257 

7733 LAKEVIEW LN NE 

01-30-24-43-0030 

LAKEVIEW 

LOT 3 BLOCK I 

BUILDING 

SINGLE FAMILY 

DECK 

$ 25,000.00 

APPLICANT BUILDING PERMIT FEE 

PLAN CHECK FEE 

m 1111u11111 1 11111 
* 2 0 1 7 - 0 0 1 7 6 * 

ISSUED: 05/31/2017 

Permit#: 2017-00176 

KINGDOM HOMES, INC 

12260 I 95TH LANE NW 

ELK RIVER, MN 55330-

ST A TE SURCHARGE - BUILDING V ALU 

TOTAL 

455.24 

295.91 

12.50 

763.65 

OWNER 

HEDGERS MATTHEW 

7733 LAKEVIEW LN NE 

SPRING LAKE PARK, MN 55432 

AGREEMENT AND SWORN STATEMENT 

I hereby certify that I have read and examined this application 
and know the same to be true and correct. All provisions of 
laws and ordinances governing this type of work will be 
complied with whether specified herein or not. The granting 
of a pennit does not presume to give authority to violate or 

cancel the provisions of any other state or local law regulating 
construction or the perfonnance of construction. 

This pennit becomes null and void if construction authorized 
is not commenced within 180 days, or if construction is 
suspended for a period of 180 days at any time after work is 

commenced. 

Payment(s) 

CHECK 1125 98349 

SEPARATE PERMITS REQUIRED FOR WORK OTHER THAN DESCRIBED ABOVE. 

763.65 

05/31/2017 
Date 



Ml<ri / 6 (. c. it. 't' \-U. o � £.£.S" 
'"l., 3 3 t. A� f. Vu.""' LA 1-1 t 
Sf'P.•Pl a..A.U f}Jil-J<, /Yt/V· 
('rt"../ \2 \5-f ) 2..D • , 

S1AJZ511o.l� t>Kft 

O\TU-1''[� o� 
�'lr� 

DL�K 

If..' 

r...J' 
t-"" 

.. ev "" 
,,.,. .... v 

� -.I"" 

., Flashing to be installed above 

ledger board and behind siding. 
o ALL structural members must be of 

approved wood of natural 
resistance to decay or treated . 

<71!6 <:} 4 JJ.. 
.sf. f � J' . "'c.JJt.t <J1 
PR..t:-1\\L� b £.LJ<S 

�" '( J, cg''j')\ 
t>J t4 -,"'\ �. 

""+ ""' 
p l..JLfA. I 'f 1 ftJ G, 'O 'tl. '""'" 

4,.JJ' t,). � 
\,V(.S'T 8�.e..¥ lt\u ... 

J-lG,H"i'S tJJ �l'S + 

"'� ')..: 
(,I.JI 

\I\ 
o Overhead electrical wires must � a 1 

minimum of 10 feet above or 3 feet 

to the side and surface of the deck. 

o Composite/synthetic decking must 

be approved before inspection. j 
/ <t' 

l 
t: Cll. � ... 

,,,,. cf'o Ir,\.� �./' 
�\.-� � �' .)t 

A.IC �'O 9. 
4· , . � /\.• 

SPt(. £0 ll"M 

DovBLS...J' 
SoAltr>� 
V,µ1' A<.L 
LA. tJ'f U.,J 

'ST.Al� tz.1SQ$ 

..?"\ 

� 
C'.I 
"' 
-\ 

4 
w D�t:.k ,,..., 6 • '!.\! 

o 3/8" X 5" Leg screws minimum to 

be applied to ledger board as per 

IRC R507.2.1 (1). Washer must 

crush into ledger board, no 

countersinking permitted. 

o 1.,n,JS 

" 

·-··· 

. C '�ty of Spring Lake Park ---11-----------=� r511 lclm 1 c:pection Departmer 

<( -� ·n: os, ., tl:' 
Date: -§j.-· zro . ..-z_olf 

1'J<11'VO'B / i 1 )oproved 8\•:_ .. ..:f2:tS _._ - - -.... �-� ·· .... � 



. ,.· 

: ·-'·: 

. . ·-.. : . . 

;·:· 

-�---... ---... -:--:--_ .. ; ... -- ----- '- .. ---�-·-- .. -- -- --·--.... -- � 

CITY OF SJ::1RING LAKE PARK 
· tashie·r as�stadmi11 
_-.·.At R·ront .i.;ounte··r 

5/31117 12:25pm 98349 . . . . . .... . . ·F·rom:. -·����DE�K�8���. LANE. - . . . . . 
. 

. : 
CR. Building ·-.·Pe·r-mi t 

. ·KINGDOM HOMES 
455.24 

CR. Building 
Surcharye · 12.50 

KINGDOM HOMES . 

-CR kf�8D��v�a�ES 
295�-91 

Receipt total 763�65 ·.· . .. . . --------------. . . 
CK .1125 763.65 . : . . .. . --------------

· Change Di.te -0�00 
Thank >YOLl ! ·_. 

·.::_.· 

. ·, 

j 
· •

. 
. � . . . 

. . � : 

. ..... . 

· · ! : . . . . 
;.: ·-·1. . J ··: 

·.,: 

. • . . • •  .· ...... 

.: ·:" 

.·  .. . · 

·· . :"·. 

·-... -· . 

. .. 
.. ,· . · . 

:.·: 

. . _.
:

·

: 

... ·· 

···.·· . . :·. 
· ... �:---



Spring Lake Park 
History. Community. Horn!!. 

l<pearson@slpmn.org 
www.slpmn.org 

Phone 
Fax 

763-784-6491 
763-792-7257 

1301 B1st Avenue NE I Spring Lal<e Parle, MN 55432 



May 22, 2017 

0\J U2..l/1[w 

Anoka County, MN 

H [. 0 6Ll2.S' 
LA f< s_ VI f_ W LAiJ [ 

2 :Z. Y: 2D · D£LK 

0 
I I I I 
0 5 

1:600 
25 50 100 ft 
I I I I I I I 

10 20m 

Oisdalmer: Map and parcel data am believed ta be accurate, but acruracy is not guaranteed. This is not a legal document and should not be substituted for a title search.appraisal, survey, or for zoning verification. 









Barry Brainard 
From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Hello Jeff & Matt, 

Barry Brainard <bbrainard@slpmn.org> 

Wednesday, June 07, 2017 4:34 PM 

'Hedgers, Matt (**PMN**)'; 'mhedgers@gmail.com' 

jeff@premierdecks.biz' 

RE: Code 

2017 Application Deadlines & Dates; New Variance Application 

Thank you for meeting me at 7733 Lakeview Lane yesterday regarding the location and setbacks of the completed 

deck. As we discussed, please find attached the Spring Lake Park variance application and application submittal 

deadlines with hearing dates. 

Spring Lake Park Code of Ordinances Section§ 153.061 (D), Accessory Buildings and Uses, states: "A detached accessory 

building shall not be located in any required front or side yard setback. A detached accessory building shall not be closer 

than eight feet to the principal building, except as otherwise provided in this chapter." Since the deck is part of your 

principal structure (your home), it must maintain an eight foot separation to your detached accessory building (your 

detached garage). 

As we discussed you have three options available: 

1. Shift your existing deck five feet to the west to attain the eight foot required separation. 

2. Shift your existing detached garage to the north 24 feet to attain the eight foot required separation. 

3. As are your rights, apply for a variance in affect for Section 153.061 (D). 

As I stated that variances are not guaranteed and must prove hardship as outlined by the State of Minnesota Statute. 

The variance will require a public hearing that would be conducted by the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission and 

seconded by the Spring Lake Park City Council. Notices of the public hearing will be mailed to all properties within 350 
feet of your location. 

In addition, you will need to submit your variance application no later than noon on Thursday, July 6, 2017 for the 

Planning Commission public hearing on Monday, July 24, 2017 at 7:00 p.m., at the Spring Lake Park City Hall. The City 

Council will make the final determination on Monday, August 3, 2017. The fee for the residential variance application is 

$150.00 plus a $150.00 escrow. Should you fail to submit the variance application by noon on July, 6, 2017, your next 

available application deadline would be Monday, August 3, 2017. This would require a Planning Commission public 

hearing on Monday, August 28, 2017 and a final City Council hearing on Monday, September 5, 2017. You will be 

expected to attend all hearings to present your case. 

Please submit all applications, fees, information and supplements to Jenny Gooden, Administrative Assistant, at the 

Spring Lake Park City Hall. You may contact Miss Gooden at 763-792-7240 or by email at jgooden@slpmn.org 

Respectfully, 

Barry Brainard 

1 













DRAFT PROCEEDINGS 

 

Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission special meeting held on August 28, 2017 at the 

Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Chairperson Dircks called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Commissioners Smith, Eischens, Bernhagen, Dircks and Hansen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Building Official Brainard; City Planner Elliott; Administrator Buchholtz 

and Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors:   Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE 

    Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

    Brad Delfs, 8172 Polk Street NE     

    Pam Wolf Sladek, Life Prep Academy 

    Larry and Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE 

    Cliff Fraser, 5617 29th Avenue North, Crystal 

    Becky and Matt Hedgers, 7733 Lakeview Lane NE 

    Jeff Yurich, Kingdom Homes 

    Judy Rogge, Life Prep Academy 

 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes – July 24, 2017 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, 

APPROVING THE MINUTES OF JULY 24, 2017. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

5.  Public Hearing – Variance Request for Construction of a Deck – Matt and Becky Hedgers –  

     7733 Lakeview Lane NE 

 

Chairperson Dircks opened the public hearing at 7:03 PM 

 

City Planner Elliott provided an overview of the variance request from Kingdom Homes on behalf of 

homeowners Matt and Becky Hedgers for a variance to build a 22 x 20 foot deck within the 8-foot setback 

of a principal structure to an accessory structure at 7733 Lakeview Lane NE. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the applicant is requesting an after-the-fact variance-the deck has been constructed 

three feet from the detached garage.  She stated that the deck is required to meet the eight-foot setback 

requirement from an accessory structure. She explained that according to Chapter 153.061 of the Zoning 

Code “a detached accessory building shall not be closer than eight feet to the principal building.”  She noted 

that the deck is considered part of the principal structure since it is attached to the back of the house and is 

therefore not complying with this section of the code. 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 JULY 24, 2017 
 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that the property owner approached City staff about his intention to build the deck and 

was provided with a handout that explains the setback requirement. She noted that he then built the deck 

without a permit. The City became aware of the deck’s construction once the property owner came in for a 

permit and an inspector inspected the newly constructed deck. 

 

Ms. Elliot reported that the deck is 20 feet wide and adjacent to a garage that is approximately 22 feet wide.  

She stated that the lot itself is 75 feet wide and the garage sites just parallel to the eastern property line.  She 

noted that there is adequate space to move the deck west out of the required setback.  She noted that it is 

the City’s understanding that the deck was built using diamond piers rather than concrete footings and 

should be easier to move west, which the deck could be moved five feet, without a setback conflict. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is guided Low Density Residential in the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

She reviewed with the Commission the criteria for considering variances as stated in the zoning code, in 

Section 153.224.   

 

Ms. Elliott stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission deny the deck variance with the 

following findings: 

 

 1.  Requiring the deck to comply with established setbacks does not cause practical difficulties 

       unique to the individual property. 

 2.  The property owner was adequately informed of the eight-foot setback principal building setback  

                  from an accessory building prior to construction beginning on the deck. 

 3.  The deck could be moved to the west without compromising the west side yard setback and is   

                   therefore not in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the code. 

 4.  Chapter 153.222 of the Zoning Code requires a permit prior to proceeding with any construction,  

                   alternation, repair, enlargement, demolition, or removal of any building. 

 5.  The property can reasonably be used without a variance. 

6.  There are no unique circumstances on this property that require the deck to be built within the  

      setback. 

7.  The use of the property as a single-family home is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 

Commissioner Eischens inquired if the resident built the deck or if a contractor was hired. He inquired as 

to why frost footings were not required.  Building Official Brainard stated that a contractor was hired and 

diamond piers were used rather than concrete footings. He stated that with diamond piers there is no 

required footing inspection. 

 

Commissioner Smith stated that the contractor should have been aware of the required setbacks.  Mr. 

Brainard stated that the International Building Code only requires a three-foot setback, which was met; 

however, the eight-foot setback is a City requirement. He noted that the setback requirements are listed in 

the deck handout that was provided to the homeowner. 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired if the eight-foot setback requirement is standard for cities.  Mr. Brainard stated 

that he is not aware what other cities require and it has not been questioned in the past. 

 

Homeowner Becky Hedgers thanked the Commission for their time and the consideration of their variance 

request.  She stated that was disappointed to learn that the staff recommendation was to deny the approval 

of the variance.  She reported that she never had received any handouts regarding the deck construction and 

had not met with any City staff to discuss the plans. 

 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 JULY 24, 2017 

Mr. Brainard stated that when he met with the contractor and homeowner at the final inspection, the 

contractor stated that he had a copy of the deck handout.  

Administrator Buchholtz inquired as to why a permit was not pulled prior to construction. Contractor Jeff 

Yurich stated that he applied for a permit on May 12, 2017 and did start some prep work. He stated that he 

informed the city that diamond piers would be used for footings. He stated that he had the deck handout 

and that he knew the deck met the required three-foot setback required by the International Building Code 

but missed the eight-foot setback city requirement. 

Mr. Brainard reported that the copy he received of the site plan was very unclear and dimensions were not 

clearly shown on the copy.  He recalled that the contractor informed the City that the deck had been built 

when the permit application was applied for. He noted that the contractor had the handout and chose to 

ignore the requirements. 

Mr. Hedgers explained that the requirement to move the deck over five feet would make the deck visible 

from the street. He stated that it would be unrealistic to shift the deck, as the door that is used to get onto 

the deck would not line up. He noted that the current garage is situated behind the house. He confirmed that 

the current alignment meets the required three-foot setback from the garage and stated that there is enough 

room between the garage and the deck. He proposed that a separation of some sort could be built between 

the deck and garage. 

Mr. Brainard noted that frost footings would be required if any such structure were built or added onto the 

garage. 

Mr. Hedgers feels that his deck does pass the practical difficulties test for the qualification of a variance. 

He stated that with a small home, the addition of the deck will provide added usable space and will enhance 

the property along with the other enhancements that have been made on the property. 

Mr. Hedgers stated that he had not seen the staff memo recommending denial until before the meeting and 

stated that there was miscommunication with the contractor.  He stated that they were under the impression 

that the deck was designed according to the rules.  

Chairperson Dircks asked for discussion from the floor. 

Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE, inquired if public notices were mailed to residents 

within 350 feet of the Hedgers. Administrator Buchholtz confirmed that the notices were mailed. 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if the contractor has built in Spring Lake Park and if an eight-foot setback 

is common.  Mr. Yurich stated that he had not built in Spring Lake Park previously. Mr. Brainard stated 

that he thought that a five to eight foot setback is normal. 

Pam Wolf Sladek, 7743 Lakeview Lane NE, informed the Commission that the Hedgers have improved 

their property greatly since they have moved in. She added that if the deck were to be shifted over the five 

feet as suggested, it would be more visible from the street.   

Mr. Brainard noted that he did offer suggestions other than shifting the deck five feet to the west. He stated 

that he suggested shifting the existing garage to the north 24 feet to attain the eight foot required separation. 

Chairperson Dircks asked for any further comments from the public. Hearing none, Chairperson Dircks 

closed the public hearing. 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 JULY 24, 2017 

The public hearing was closed at 7:24 PM. 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN 

TO APPROVE VARIANCE FOR A 22 X 20 FOOT DECK AT 7733 LAKEVIEW LANE NE. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: COMMISSIONER SMITH – AYE; COMMISSIONER EISCHENS – NAY; 

COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN-AYE; COMMISSIONER HANSEN-AYE AND CHAIRPERSON 

DIRCKS-AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  



RESOLUTION NO. 17-28

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A BOARDING 

SCHOOL AT 1628 COUNTY HIGHWAY 10 NE 

WHEREAS, Life Prep Academy, 1628 County Highway 10 NE, have made application 

for a conditional use permit to allow a boarding school; and 

WHEREAS, the property is legally described as follows: 

Lot 12, 13, 14, 30, 31, and 32, Warrens Addition, subject to easement of record; 

and 

WHEREAS, mailed and published notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed 

conditional use permit was given; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the proposed conditional use permit was held on 

August 28, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the request was made to permit a boarding school at the above described 

property, which is located in the C-1 zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the application at the August 28, 

2017 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval of the conditional use 

permit, subject to conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves a conditional use permit to permit a 

boarding school at 1628 County Highway 10 NE subject to the following conditions: 

1. Up to six students shall be permitted without a CUP amendment.

2. The operator shall comply with the International Building Code and shall apply for any

necessary permits.

3. The operator shall comply with the five performance standards for boarding houses and

dormitories as outlined in the City’s zoning code.

4. The exterior property shall be cleaned up of litter on a weekly basis.

5. The operator shall dedicate a secure indoor bicycle parking location for at least six

bicycles.

6. The operator will submit a clearly delineated and advertised policy that defines resident

responsibilities and behavioral expectations as well as response to policy infractions to

City staff for review and approval.  The approved policy will be posted in the building,

provided to all residents of the dormitory, and provided to city policy.



 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  

 

And the following voted against the same:. 

 

 

 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 5th day of September, 

2017. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 

 



 

   

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: August 28, 2017 
 
To:  Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
 
From:  Beth Elliott, AICP, City Planner 
 
RE: Life Prep Academy – Conditional Use Permit 
 1628 County Highway 10 NE 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Applicant Pam Wolf Sladek 
operates Life Prep Academy in 
space in an existing commercial 
building at 1628 County Highway 10 
NE. The school is for homeless and 
at-risk teens who are housed now in 
a home in the community.  Ms. 
Sladek would like to expand the 
opportunity to more students by 
providing a dormitory for students in 
their school space.  Previously such 
a dormitory use was not allowed in 
the City’s zoning ordinance, but the 
ordinance was amended (see 
attached) on August 7, 2017 to 
allow this use by Conditional Use 
Permit in the C-1 District.  The City Council approved five performance standards in Section 
153.120 for boarding schools and dormitories as part of the ordinance amendment: 
 

(1) Dormitory must be supervised by adult staff members whenever students are present. 
(2) Dormitory must have sufficient personal space for students to sleep in and store their 

belongings, with suitable furniture of sufficient size for the number of students, as well as 
appropriate separation between gender and age groups. 

(3) In addition to sleeping rooms, dormitory must include provision of support spaces (e.g. 
living room, activity room, study rooms, storage, laundry, kitchen/dining area, bathrooms, 
etc.). 

(4) Dormitory must have bathroom and washing facilities that ensure maximum privacy of 
students, as well as personal hygiene. Bathrooms, showers and toilets must be designed in 
such a way that staff is able to open them from the outside in case of an emergency. 

(5) Dormitory must provide a space for health care, such as sick rooms/bays with an 
appropriate first aid kit. 

 
 



August 28, 2017 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
Page 2 of 4  
 
Re: Life Prep Academy – Conditional Use Permit 
 
 

 

Life Prep Academy has been accepting students since 2014 with recent graduation of their first 
three students.  The applicant is proposing to expand school attendance, and therefore dormitory 
use, to 20 teens eventually.  Space within their existing building would be remodelled to create the 
dormitory space.  Students would be supervised throughout the day and evening.  The floor plan 
shows classrooms on the first floor and dormintory functions on the second floor with 2-6 students 
per room.  The dorm parents would have their own residential suite on the second floor. 
 
The property is adjacent to Arthur Street NE, running parallel to Highway 10 NE near Pleasant View 
Drive NE.  It is adjacent to Kings Corner Auto Sales to the southwest and to its northwest is a 
daycare center and Hy-Way House Motel.  It is otherwise surrounded by a manufactured home 
neighborhood.  The site is comprised of six parcels with a total size of 67,500 square feet, about 1.5 
acres. 
 
The front portion of the building where the use is proposed is a two-story structure with 
approximately 10,000 square feet of gross floor area – the school is already functioning on the 
ground floor.  The two-story component of the building then transitions to one story in the back 
half of the property.  This L-shaped building shares a surface parking lot with a similar one-story 
building facing it on the opposing side of the lot that includes a salon and the auto sales business.  
The building is separated from Arthur Street NE by approximately 50 feet of grass lawn and is 
accessed via a curb cut on Arthur Street NE. 
 

PLANNING ISSUES DISCUSSION  
 

1) Comprehensive Plan and Zoning.  The property is guided Commercial in the City’s 2030 
Land Use Plan.  Zoning on the site is C-1 Shopping Center Commercial – allowed uses 
include, but are not limited to, auto and marine sales and services; boarding and lodging 
houses, nursing homes, and motels, hotels, and apartment hotels; offices; brewer taprooms 



August 28, 2017 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
Page 3 of 4  
 
Re: Life Prep Academy – Conditional Use Permit 
 
 

 

and cocktail rooms; medical clinics and hospitals; sexually oriented businesses; retail; 
daycare facilities; drive-in and sit-down restaurants and night clubs; and pawn shops.  



August 28, 2017 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  
Page 4 of 4  
 
Re: Life Prep Academy – Conditional Use Permit 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We recommend that the Planning Commission approve the Conditional Use Permit for Life Prep 
Academy located at 1628 Highway 10 NE, with the following conditions: 
 

1) Up to six students shall be permitted without a CUP amendment. 
 

2) The operator shall comply with the International Building code and apply for any 
necessary permits. 
 

3) The operator shall comply with the five performance standards for boarding houses and 
dormitories as approved by the City Council. 
 

4) The exterior property shall be cleaned up of litter on a weekly basis. 
 

5) The operator shall dedicate a secure indoor bicycle parking location for at least six 
bicycles. 
 

6) The operator will submit a clearly delineated and advertised policy that defines resident 
responsibilities and behavioral expectations as well as response to policy infractions to City 
staff for review and approval.  The approved policy will be posted in the building, provided 
to all residents, and provided to city police. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Development application 
• New ordinance amendment 

 



















ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPENDIX D TO CHAPTER 153, ZONING, OF THE 

SPRING LAKE PARK CODE OF ORDINANCE 

 

The City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, ordains as follows: 

 

Section 1. Section (B), Commercial Districts, Appendix D, Schedule of Permitted Uses by 

District, to Chapter 153, Zoning, is hereby amended to add the following use: 

 

 District 

C-1 C-2 C-3 

Boarding School C   

 

Section 2. Section 153.007 is hereby amended to add the following definitions. 

 

 BOARDING SCHOOL.  A school at which the pupils receive board and lodging 

during the school term. 

 DORMITORY.  A building used as group living quarters for a student body, 

religious order or other group as an associated use to a college, university, 

boarding school, orphanage, convent, monetary or other similar use.  Dormitories 

do not include kitchen facilities, except a group kitchen facility to serve all 

residents. 

 

Section 3. Section 153.120 is hereby amended as follows: 

 (I)   Boarding School 

        (1)  Dormitory must be supervised by adult staff members whenever students 

are present. 

        (2)  Dormitory must have sufficient personal space for students to sleep in 

and store their belongings, with suitable furniture of sufficient size for the number 

of students, as well as appropriate separation between gender and age groups. 

        (3)  In addition to sleeping rooms, dormitory must include provision of 

support spaces (e.g. living room, activity room, study rooms, storage, laundry, 

kitchen/dining area, bathrooms, etc.). 

        (4)  Dormitory must have bathroom and washing facilities that ensure 

maximum privacy of students, as well as personal hygiene.  Bathrooms, showers 

and toilets must be designed in such a way that staff is able to open them from the 

outside in case of an emergency. 

        (5)  Dormitory must provide a space for health care, such as sick rooms/bays 

with an appropriate first aid kit. 

 

Section 4. Effective Date.  The ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and 

publication. 

 

 

  



 

Passed by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, this ____ day of 

_________________, 2017. 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 JULY 24, 2017 
 

 

The public hearing was closed at 7:24 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN 

TO APPROVE VARIANCE FOR A 22 X 20 FOOT DECK AT 7733 LAKEVIEW LANE NE. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: COMMISSIONER SMITH – AYE; COMMISSIONER EISCHENS – NAY; 

COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN-AYE; COMMISSIONER HANSEN-AYE AND CHAIRPERSON 

DIRCKS-AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  

 

6.  Public Hearing– Amendment to existing Conditional Use Permit – Cliff Fraser- 8301 Sunset Drive NE 

 

7.  Public Hearing- Application for Conditional Use Permit – Pam Wolf Sladek-1628 Highway 10 NE 

 

Chairperson Dircks opened the public hearing at 8:57 PM. 

 

City Planner Elliott provided an overview of an application for a Conditional Use Permit from Pam Wolf 

Sladek to expand the opportunity to more students by providing a dormitory for students in their existing 

school space at Life Prep Academy.  Ms. Elliott reported that previously such a dormitory use was not 

allowed in the City’s zoning ordinance, but a Conditional Use Permit in the C-1 District amended the 

ordinance on August 7, 2017 to allow this use.  She noted that the City Council approved five performance 

standards in Section 153.120 for boarding schools and dormitories as part of the ordinance amendment. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the applicant is proposing to expand school attendance, and therefore dormitory 

use, to 20 teens eventually.  She stated that space within their existing building would be remodeled to 

create the dormitory space.  She stated that students would be supervised throughout the day and evening. 

She reported that the floor plan shows classrooms on the first floor and dormitory functions on the second 

floor with two to six students per room.  She stated that dorm parents would have their own residential suite 

on the second floor. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is adjacent to Arthur Street NE, running parallel to Highway 10 NE 

near Pleasant View Drive NE.  The site is comprised of six parcels with a total size of 67,500 square feet, 

about 1.5 acres.  She explained that the front portion of the building where the use is proposed is a two-

story structure with approximately 10,000 square feet of gross floor area – the school is already functioning 

on the ground floor.  This L-shaped building shares a surface parking lot with a similar one-story building 

facing it on the opposite side of the lot that included a salon and the auto sales business. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is guided Commercial in the City’s 2030 Land Use Plan and zoning 

on the site is C-1 Shopping Center Commercial. 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that staff recommended the Planning commission approve the Conditional Use Permit for 

the Life Prep Academy located at 1628 Highway 10 NW with the following conditions: 

 

 1.  Up to six students shall be permitted without a CUP permit 

 2.  The operator shall comply with the International Building Code and apply for any necessary  

                   permits. 

 3.  The operator shall comply with five performance standards for boarding houses and dormitories  

                  as approved by the City Council. 

 4.  The exterior property shall be cleaned up of litter on a weekly basis. 

 5.  The operator shall dedicate a secure indoor bicycle parking location for at least six bicycles. 

 6.  The operator will submit a clearly delineated and advertised policy that defines resident  

                   responsibilities and behavioral expectations as well as response to policy infractions to City  



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 JULY 24, 2017 
 

 

                   staff to review and approval.  The approved policy will be posted in the building, provided to  

                   all dormitory residents, and provided to City Police. 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired if Ms. Wolf Sladek would be required to to amend the CUP each time the 

number of students increases since six students are allowed without a CUP amendment.  Ms. Elliott stated 

that since this is a new dormitory and new use, the CUP would be able to grow with the school so allowing 

six at this time seems reasonable. 

 

Commissioner Smith inquired on the supervision and care that will available to students who may have a 

greater need for services or assistance.  

 

 Ms. Wolf Sladek stated that all of the students must be highly motivated to receive their diploma. She 

explained that the students are working towards their diploma verses their GED because a diploma is 

accepted more often than a GED. She stated that proper care will be given for those students who have 

reasonable needs or would need to be seen by a professional.  She stated that she would have to deny a 

student if there was a need for extreme treatment needed. 

 

Ms. Wolf Sladek explained that there would 24-hour awake security on site and dorm parents would be on 

site for assistance overnight. She stated that the homes that the students are currently housed in do not have 

awake security as the dorm parent is only in the home with them.  

  

Commissioner Smith inquired if Ms. Wolf Sladek is aware of the age difference amongst students and 

would she be able to have access to all their personal information.  

 

Ms. Wolf Sladek explained that she has been teaching for over 35 years so she is aware of the difference 

with children. She noted that there would be separation of males and females in the dorm rooms and the 

oldest student she would accept would be 18 years old.  She stated that she would have access to their 

information and history. She stated that students can be recommended by parents, police, social workers, 

school personnel to attend Life Prep Academy.   

 

Commissioner Smith inquired as to what role Ms. Wolf Sladek has in the school. She explained that she 

handles all the roles of the Academy including the administration, fund raising and teaching. She reported 

that the school is 100 percent donation based and a private donor has donated $150,000 for the renovation 

for a dormitory.   She stated that there are other tenants in the building but they lease on month-to-month 

basis and the property owner would provide them with adequate notice and leasing space in one of the other 

buildings that the property owner owns. 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired if there are any regulations that need to be followed by the county or state 

level. Ms. Wolf Sladek reported that she is researching this currently. She stated that there are mandatory 

reported and legal issues that need to be met but there are currently no regulations that she is aware of.  She 

explained that Life Prep Academy would be similar to a boarding school. 

 

Building Official Brainard inquired if the building is ADA compliant and sprinkled since it is a two-story 

building.  She stated that it is not sprinkler equipped. She noted that there will not be any students with 

needs that would make the building necessary to for ADA accommodations. She stated that there are 

resources available to those persons with disabilities and have needs. 

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for public comments. 

 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 JULY 24, 2017 
 

 

Judy Rogge, Life Prep Academy, explained how she and Ms. Wolf Sladek see the importance of providing 

children a better life, education and to have a happier place to be. 

 

Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff stated that she supports Ms. Wolf Sladek and the good she is doing with the 

school. She inquired if there will be a curfew for the students. Ms. Wolf Sladek stated that on a school 

night, the curfew would be 10:00 PM and a non-school night the curfew would be midnight. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if the dormitory is set up for 20 students now, why would only six be 

allowed currently. Administrator Buchholtz explained that a more restrictive permit allows the City the 

opportunity to evaluate the impact of the use before granting any further CUP amendments to expand the 

use. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as to what type of security training the security personnel will have. Ms. 

Wolf Sladek stated that she is unsure at this time. She predicted that the requirement of a security class or 

something similar would be in order. 

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for any additional comments. Hearing none, Chairperson Dircks closed the public 

hearing. 

 

The public hearing closed at 9:25 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO 

APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR LIFE PREP ACADEMY AT 1628 HIGHWAY 10 NE 

WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 1. UP TO SIX STUDENTS SHALL BE PERMITTED 

WITHOUT A CUP AMENDMENT; 2. THE OPERATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE 

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE AND APPLY FOR ALL NECESSARY PERMITS; 3. THE 

OPERATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FIVE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR BOARDING 

HOUSES AND DORMITORIES AS APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL; 4; THE EXTERIOR 

PROPERTY SHALL BE CLEANED UP OF LITTER ON A WEEKLY BASIS; 5.  THE OPERATOR 

SHALL DEDICATE A SECURE INDOOR BICYCLE PARKING LOCATION FOR AT LEAST SIX 

BICYCLES; 6. THE OPERATOR WILL SUBMIT A CLEARLY DELINEATED AND ADVERTISED 

POLICY THAT DEFINES RESIDENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND BEHAVIORAL EXPECTATIONS 

AS WELL AS RESPONSE TO POLICY INFRACTIONS TO CITY STAFF FOR REVIEW AND 

APPROVAL. THE APPROVED POLICY WILL BE POSTED IN THE BUILDING; PROVIDED TO 

ALL DORMITORY RESIDENTS, AND PROVIDED TO CITY POLICE.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL 

AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

8.  Other 

 

9.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO 

ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:28 PM. 





 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 9.5.17 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

Continuing to work with the Public Works Director and the Administrator on implementing 

the work plan for 2017 MS4 items.  Annual public meeting was held on July 17th.   

 

Surface Water Management Plan (193803949). 

We continue doing research (including compiling old plans) as part of the background 

research for updating the local surface water management plan including stormwater 

modeling.   

 
2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803782). 

This project includes sanitary sewer lining in the neighborhood east of Able Street and 

north of 81st Avenue.  The Contractor, Visu-Sewer, has completed most of the lining work.  

Remaining lining work will be completed over the next few weeks.  Terry Randall is 

coordinating.                    

 
2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project (193803783). 

This 2-year project will include street maintenance in the neighborhood north of 81st Ave. 

and west of Monroe St. (2017) and in the neighborhood east of Monroe St., south of 81st 

St. and west of TH 65 (2018).  The Contractor, Astech, has completed the 2017 seal coat 

work and initial sweeping.  A second sweeping and pavement markings will follow this 

month.  Terry Randall is coordinating.              

  

Other issues/projects.    
 

Continue to work with Coon Creek Watershed District (CCWD) Technical Advisory 

Committee (TAC) meeting.   

 

City’s Water Supply Plan (DNR requirement) has been reviewed by the DNR and 

forwarded to the Met Council for review.   

 

Reviewed plans from T-Mobile to upgrade their facilities on the Able Street water tower.  

 

Continue working with Dan, Terry, Phil Carlson, and the developer regarding the 

potential Hy-Vee development.   

  

Working on site plan construction issues for the Dominium project.  Terry Randall is 

monitoring day-to-day issues on the project.          

 
 

Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Tim Grinstead, Peter Allen, or me if you 

have any questions or require any additional information.   





 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



















 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, continued to meet with City officials and department contacts 
regarding potential programming for the channels.  He completed nine of the projects that had 
previously been requested, and shot footage for more, including several days of drone footage 
from the Fetes des Lacs activities.  The footage will require editing before a final program can be 
completed.   In addition to video productions he also marched in the  Fetes des Lacs parade as a 
part of the NMTV float.  He photographed parade attendees and posted the photos to the NMTV 
Facebook page.  NMTV receives thousands of visits from parade attendees looking for their 
photo. Staff members Kenton Kipp, Ben Hayle, and T.J. Tronson also either produced programs 
or assisted in the production of programs for the City channels.  
 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 

July 2017  CCIITTYY  REPORT  
blaine centerville circle pines ham lake lexington lino lakes spring lake park

▪ July Completed Videos/Playing on City Channels & Internet 

Video Production 

Spring Lake Park Tower Days Trevor Scholl 00:04:24 

Blaine Festival Trevor Scholl 00:03:21 

Mayor's Minutes:  Circle Pines Summer 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:06:11 

Tip 411 Trevor Scholl 00:03:49 

Blaine Traffic Unit Trevor Scholl 00:03:53 

Mayor's Minutes: Centerville Summer 2017 Trevor Scholl 00:05:57 

Lino Lakes Car Seat Clinics Trevor Scholl 00:03:57 

Lino Lakes Recycling Trevor Scholl 00:00:48 

Ham Lake Farmers Market Muggle Bath Trevor Scholl 00:04:09 

Blaine Safety Camp T.J. Tronson 00:18:08 

Local Decision 2017:  File for Office Ben Hayle 00:02:36 

Fetes Des Lacs Parade Kenton Kipp 00:47:31 

Anoka County Board Meeting (7/11/17) T.J. Tronson 00:32:02 

Anoka County Board Meeting (7/27/17) T.J. Tronson 00:36:47 
 

 
 
Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include: 
 
 Centerville Fetes Des Lacs editing 
 Spring Lake Park Mayor's Minutes 
 Ham Lake Mayor's Minutes 
 Developing Community Corner program to be hosted by City Administrators for 

those Cities with Mayor's  unable to participate in Mayor's Minutes programs 



 Lino Lakes YourGov App 
 Lino Lakes corrections facility piece 
 Blue Heron Days 
 Lexington Mayor's Minutes 
 New pictures for Lexington website 
 Blaine Mayor's Minutes 2 editing 
 Business profiles 
 Fire station recruitment needs for each department 
 Explorers programs 
 City comprehensive plan coverage 
 Lexington Fall celebration 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 Blaine 
 No equipment assistance requested or required.      
 Centerville  
 No equipment assistance requested or required.   

 Circle Pines  
 No equipment assistance requested or required.      

 Ham Lake  
 Met with Don and Denise to discuss HD upgrade. 
 Contacted iSpace, Z Systems, and Alpha Video about getting proposals to Ham 

Lake staff.  
 Contacted Ham Lake staff to report channel graphics down.   
 Contacted Ham Lake staff to report channel graphics still down.  Rebooted and 

fixed. 
 Lexington  
 No equipment assistance requested or required.      

 Lino Lakes  
 Met Jeff Karlson to discuss the latest upgrade proposal from Z Systems.  Matt 

was able to recommend some changes to the equipment list resulting in $60,000 
less than the previous proposal with essentially the same functionality.   

 Presented the HD upgrade recommendation at the Lino Lakes City Council Work 
Session, and answered questions.  

 Emailed information to Jeff Karlson regarding the bidding process.   
 Contacted Lino Lakes staff regarding channel graphics down.  Rebooted and 

fixed.  
 Spring Lake Park  
 Contacted Comcast to report City and School District channels down.  Worked 

with Comcast to diagnose problem and get channels back up.   
 
 
 
  

 
 

  
 
 
Programming Coordinator, Michele Silvester, along with help from Eric Houston and 
Tarkor Zehn, is responsible for processing and scheduling the programming on the City 
channels.  There are three categories of programs that are scheduled on the City channels; 

Equipment Consulting/Technical Support 

Master Control 



live and replayed meetings, NMTV staff created video content, and informational 
graphics pages.  All categories of programming must be encoded, scheduled, and entered 
into the Tightrope playback system.   
 
As each live meeting is being recorded at City Hall, it is routed to the North Metro TV 
head-end and then sent out over the cable system. At the same time it is also encoded on 
a server for future playbacks.  The following meetings were processed in June: 
 
 

Title Producer Runtime 
Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 

(7/11/17) 
Blaine Staff 00:47:38 

Blaine Traffic Commission Meeting 
(7/12/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:56:32 

Blaine City Council Meeting (7/13/17) Blaine Staff 03:03:20 

Blaine Natural Resource Conservation Board 
Meeting (7/18/17) 

Blaine Staff 01:14:21 

Centerville City Council Meeting (7/12/17) Centerville Staff 02:20:28 

Centerville City Council Meeting (7/26/17) Centerville Staff 02:40:35 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting (7/11/17) Circle Pines Staff 00:49:35 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(7/19/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:12:01 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting (7/25/17) Circle Pines Staff 00:36:39 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (7/5/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:13:46 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(7/10/17) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:29:08 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (7/17/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:22:05 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(7/24/17) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:07:22 

Lexington City Council Meeting (7/6/17) Lexington Staff 01:08:11 

Lexington City Council Meeting (7/20/17) Lexington Staff 00:41:03 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting (7/10/17) Lino Lakes Staff 01:38:13 

Lino Lakes Planning & Zoning Commission 
Meeting (7/12/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 02:37:09 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting (7/24/17) Lino Lakes Staff 00:24:28 

Lino Lakes Environmental Board Meeting 
(7/26/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 02:04:55 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(7/17/17) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

02:06:56 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission 
Meeting (7/24/17) 

Spring Lake Park 
Staff 

01:46:26 

21 New Programs  26:20:51  New 
Hours 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Meetings are scheduled for replay based on schedules requested by each City. Additional 
video programming produced by NMTV staff is also scheduled on the channels.  The 
table below outlines how many times a video program was entered into the Tightrope 
system, and played back on each City channel.   
 

City Number of Times 
Programs Played 

Hours Programmed 
on Channel 

Blaine  321 255:32:45 

Centerville 104 56:30:00 

Circle Pines 236 80:45:24 

Ham Lake 197 54:33:44 

Lexington 101 85:17:32 

Lino Lakes 178 56:40:00 

Spring Lake Park 161 131:15:36 

Totals: 1,298 Program Playbacks 720:35:01   Hours of 
Video Programming on 

Channels 

 
 
The last category of programming on City channels consists of bulletin board, or graphics 
pages, that display information about the City or about events and issues of interest to 
citizens.  Eric Houston is currently updating the pages for Cities that have indicated 
interest in his assistance. He began updating the pages in March, where hundreds of new 
slides were created.  In June, new slides were created upon request.  New Tightrope 
Carousel graphics generators have been purchased for Cities and will be installed mid-
August.  At that time, Eric will be responsible for all City approved content on the 
Carousel units.  The following work was done for City graphics pages in June: 
 

 Blaine 
 No assistance requested. 

 Centerville  
 No assistance requested. 

 Circle Pines  
 No assistance requested. 

 Ham Lake  
 No assistance requested. 

 Lexington  
 No assistance requested. 

 Lino Lakes  
 No assistance requested. 

 Spring Lake Park  
 No assistance requested. 

 All Cities  
 Carousel testing and experimentation. 
 Create and run test videos. 
 Run test channels. 
 Experiment with multi-zone channels in anticipation of new Carousel units. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
NMTV has created a video on demand service, with line-item bookmarking, for our 
Cities meetings.  In order to accomplish this each encoded meeting has to undergo 
several steps.  The meeting must first be transferred and transcoded from the playback 
server to the video on demand server.  The length of time necessary for this varies based 
on the length of the meeting.  Once that is done, a staff member must go through the 
meeting entering a bookmark at the start of each meeting line-item, and type in the 
corresponding line-item information.  Staff utilizes marked agendas provided by City 
staff members for this step.  If marked agendas aren't provided by City staff we go to the 
City website to find unmarked agendas and place meeting on VOD without bookmarks.  
Once that is done and saved the bookmarked meeting is then linked to the NMTV 
website's city meeting page for video on demand. The following number of meetings 
were bookmarked and/or placed on VOD for the Cities in June: 
 
 Blaine 
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Centerville  
 2 meetings placed on VOD. 

 Circle Pines  
 3 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Ham Lake  
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD. 

 Lexington  
 2 meetings placed on VOD. 

 Lino Lakes  
 4 meetings bookmarked and placed on VOD.  

 Spring Lake Park  
 2 meeting bookmarked and placed on VOD 
 Worked to transfer files from hard drive to NMTV playback servers with light 

editing 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
The issues dealt with in July include the complaint filed against CenturyLink by the 
Minnesota Attorney General, inquiries regarding the second quarter franchise and PEG 
fee reports by Comcast and CenturyLink, the Carousel/Makito X upgrade for Cities, and 
the resolution of consumer complaints.    
 
 Carousel/Makito X  
 Verify installation date of August 14th and required staff scheduling.  
 Meet with staff regarding master control issues related to Makito X and Carousel 

work flow.  
 

  

Meetings on Demand 
 

Administrative 



 CenturyLink Complaint  
 Read article in Star Tribune regarding Attorney General Complaint against 

CenturyLink 
 Received copy of Complaint from CenturyLink, read 
 Talked with Commission attorney, Mike Bradley, regarding Complaint and 

possible Commission actions. 
 Emailed Operations Committee regarding Complaint and possible Commission 

actions 
 Emailed Cable Commission regarding Complaint and possible Commission 

actions 
 Scheduled Complaint for discussion during September meetings 
 

 Customer Complaints  
 Ongoing from previous month:  Mediated a Ham Lake customer complaint 

regarding the condition of his property after Comcast service installation.  
Resolved to subscribers satisfaction.  

 
 End of Quarter Franchise and PEG Fee reporting  
 Received some reports from Comcast and CenturyLink detailing 2nd Quarter 

franchise fee and PEG fee payment. 
 Contacted Comcast and CenturyLink regarding missing parts of reports 
 Received missing reports 
 Calculated fee totals and compared to previous payments from last quarter and the 

same time last year 
 Schedule report for September meetings 
 
 

 Miscellaneous  
 Coordinated NMTV float and marchers in Centerville Fetes des Lacs Parade. 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 2017  Update 
North Metro TV
 

 

 
 
          
  

Program Production 

In July, a total of 83 new programs were produced utilizing the North 
Metro facilities, funds, and services.  This constitutes 75:15:00 hours 
of new programming.    
 

 25 programs were produced by the public  

 37 programs were produced by NMTV staff 

 21 programs were produced by City staff 
 
 
 
 
 
  Van Shoots 
  
The HD truck was used for 66:15:00 hours of production. Events 
produced live and recorded for additional playbacks include: 
 

 USA Cup Weekend: July 14: 3 Games 

 USA Cup Weekend: July 15: 3 Games 

 USA Cup Weekend: July 16: 4 Games 

 USA Cup Opening Ceremonies 

 USA Cup: July 19: 3 Games 

 USA Cup: July 20: 3 Games 

 USA Cup: July 21: 4 Games 

 Centerville Fetes Des Lacs Parade 
 
 
 
 

  
Workshops 
 

Workshop Instructor Organization Students 

Studio A Eric Houston Toastmasters 14 

Connecting Anoka County 
Taping 

Eric Houston Video Club 8 

Open Studio Night Eric Houston Video Club/General 
Public 

13 

Editing Eric Houston General Public 3 

Camera Eric Houston General Public 3 

5 Workshops   41 Students 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
  Home Movie Transfers 
 
Home movie transfers have become one of our most popular services.  Residents can transfer 
their family videos, film, slides, and photos at North Metro TV themselves for free, or pay NMTV 
to do it.  Most participants want to do it themselves.       
 

Month Hours 
Transferred 

Tapes Film 
Reels 

DVDs Photos/
Slides 

Fees Paid 

January 205.75 58 174  46 80 $675 

February 165.75 65 41 14 672 $411 

March 131.5 41 98 45 0 $305 

April 118.5 60 34 40 0 $157.50 

May 192.25 81 58 16 473 $215 

June 207.5 70 26 65 0 $274.50 

July 179.25 83 5 41 208 $545 

TOTAL: 1,200.50 458 436 267 1,433 $2,583.00 

 
 
 
  
 
Public Usage Stats 

For statistical purposes, the public access department documents total numbers of unique 
individuals and total hours of usage of the facility by the general public, every month.  These 
numbers include regular users, class participants, individuals transferring videos, people who 
attend events, and any other public usage of the facility.  The numbers do not take into account 
the many members of the public who work with any other NMTV department, such as news, 
sports, outreach, or educational.    
 

Month Unique Individuals Total Usage Hours 

January 67 523.5 

February 74 461.75 

March 54 476.75 

April 71 326.5 

May 106 665 

June 95 511.25 

July 75 459.5 

TOTAL PUBLIC USAGE:  3,424.25 

 
 
 
 
  Production Highlights 
 

NMTV News Highlights 
Each week Danika Peterson and Ben Hayle create 
a news program that highlights events, people, 
issues, and information important to citizens of our 
Member Cities.  Some July highlights include:  

 Ham Lake non-profit Bikes for Kids 
 Local Decision 2017: Filing for office in 

Lino Lakes and Circle Pines 
 Blaine 12 year old heads to the BMX World 

Championship 
 Centerville's Fetes des Lacs celebration 
 Ham Lake couple featured on water garden 

tour 
 Safety Camp 
 Police Chief Olson leaves role with Blaine 
 National Sports Center ready for USA Cup 
 Blaine police and citizens work together to keep roads safe 
 



In addition to daily playbacks of North Metro TV News on the cable systems, there are over 411 
local stories archived for viewers on the NMTV YouTube page.  The page can be accessed 
through the northmetrotv.com website. 
     

USA Cup Soccer 
As always, July is a busy soccer month for North Metro TV.  
Staff, interns, and volunteers rallied their forces to cover the 
Opening Ceremonies and 20 USA Cup games, including 
the pre-USA Cup weekend games.  All of the games were 
live on TV and via the North Metro TV website.  It was a 
very well coordinated and time intensive production 
schedule but everyone worked together to make the week 
very successful.  It is the first year that our games are 
available in the blu-ray format only.  This is the second year 
we required purchases of game recordings be made via 
credit card through our website.  It is a much more 
streamlined and manageable process.  The individual games sold for $15.  Orders of 10 or more 
discs were sold for $10 each.   
 

Safety Camp 
T.J. Tronson completed his 21st Blaine Safety Camp production in July.  He recorded the 
presentations and activities and then put together a short highlight program.  He always puts 
together the video presentation for campers and their parents for the second night of camp.  The 
highlight version of the event is used for playback on the channels.  As always, a link was 
provided for the Blaine website.        
 

Open Studio Night 
Studio Manager, Eric Houston, hosted North Metro TV's second "Open Studio Night" in July.  The 
purpose of the event is to have a fully crewed studio opportunity for anyone in the community who 
would like to produce a show, but just doesn't have the crew to do it.  Current and new producers 
are invited to come in and make a show.  This time around the crew recorded a table read of an 
original sitcom script, titled "John Stamos."  The cast included two actors from Ham Lake.  The 
volunteer crew had a chance to learn more about producing a show in Studio A.  It was a fun 
night for everyone.   
 

Fetes des Lacs Celebration 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, spent quite a bit of 
time gathering footage from all of the Centerville 
Fetes des Lacs events.  Along with NMTV Drone 
Operator, T.J. Tronson, he was able to get some 
pretty amazing footage of the festivities.  Trevor will 
edit together a festival highlight program for the City 
channel.  In addition to that coverage, NMTV staff 
videotaped the parade, marched in the parade, and 
took photographs of parade watchers and posted 
them to Facebook.   
 

City Productions 
Municipal Producer, Trevor Scholl, completed nine programs in July and started the work on 
several more. He continued to call and meet with City officials and department contacts to talk 
about additional programming possibilities. He also spent a great deal of time covering events for 
the Centerville Fetes des Lacs celebration.  Projects that were completed in July include: 

 Tower Days 
 Blaine Festival 
 Mayor's Minutes: Circle Pines Summer 2017 
 Tip 411 
 Blaine Traffic Unit 
 Mayor's Minutes: Centerville Summer 2017 
 Lino Lakes Car Seat Clinics 
 Lino Lakes Recycling 
 Ham Lake Farmers Market 
 Shot state capitol time capsule video for Blaine 
 Shot drone footage with T.J. of Fetes des Lacs events 



 Shot pictures while marching in the Fetes des Lacs parade and uploaded to Facebook 
 
Future programs being organized or completed include: 

 Spring Lake Park Mayor's Minutes 
 Ham Lake Mayor's Minutes 
 Developing Community Corner program to be hosted by City Administrators for those 

Cities with Mayor's unable to participate in Mayor's Minutes programs 
 A tour of Circle Pines with Mayor Dave 
 Lino Lakes YourGov App 
 Lino Lakes corrections facility piece 
 Fetes Des Lacs events editing 
 Blue Heron Days 
 Lexington Mayor's Minutes 
 New pictures for Lexington website 
 Blaine Mayor's Minutes 2  
 Business profiles 
 Fire station recruitment needs for each department 
 Explorers programs 
 City comprehensive plan coverage 
 Lexington Fall celebration 

 
Trevor touches base with contacts on a regular basis and also encourages Cities to contact him 
whenever they have an idea for a new show.    

 

Production equipment consulting for cities and schools  
 Blaine 

 No equipment assistance requested or required.      
 Centerville  
 No equipment assistance requested or required.   

 Circle Pines  
 No equipment assistance requested or required.      

 Ham Lake  
 Met with Don and Denise to discuss HD upgrade. 
 Contacted iSpace, Z Systems, and Alpha Video about getting proposals to Ham Lake 

staff.  
 Contacted Ham Lake staff to report channel graphics down.   
 Contacted Ham Lake staff to report channel graphics still down.  Rebooted and fixed. 

 Lexington  
 No equipment assistance requested or required.      

 Lino Lakes  

 Met Jeff Karlson to discuss the latest upgrade proposal from Z Systems.  Matt was able 
to recommend some changes to the equipment list resulting in $60,000 less than the 
previous proposal with essentially the same functionality.   

 Presented the HD upgrade recommendation to the Lino Lakes City Council work session, 
and answered questions.  

 Emailed information to Jeff Karlson regarding the bidding process.   
 Contacted Lino Lakes staff regarding channel graphics down.  Rebooted and fixed.  

 Spring Lake Park  

 Contacted Comcast to report City and School District channels down.  Worked with 
Comcast to diagnose problem and get channels back up.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Channel 16 Playback Stats 
 

City Number of Times Programs Played Hours Programmed on 
Channel 

Blaine  321 255:32:45 

Centerville 104 56:30:00 

Circle Pines 236 80:45:24 

Ham Lake 197 54:33:44 

Lexington 101 85:17:32 

Lino Lakes 178 56:40:00 

Spring Lake Park 161 131:15:36 

Totals: 1,298 Program Playbacks 720:35:01   Hours of Video 
Programming on Channels 

 
 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by the Public 

 
Title Producer Runtime 

Connecting Anoka County:  
Independence For All 

Julie Jeppson/Eric 
Houston 

00:20:18 

Off Constantly (2 episodes) McLean Dolphy 01:03:46 

Garage Deals Laurie Sigler/Joe Scholz 00:12:34 

John Stamos Allyson Schue 00:17:05 

Every Movie Ever Made (2 episodes) Lizzy Sigler, Gavin Van 
Trease, Eric Houston 

00:58:28 

Cornerstone Church  Rick Bostrom 00:25:02 

The Power of Love (4 episodes) Rick Larson 02:00:00 

LovePower (4 episodes) Ann Sandell 04:00:00 

Rice Creek Watershed District Meeting (3 
episodes) 

Theresa Stasica  04:47:25 

Monday Motivation With Bukola Bukola Oriola 00:36:08 

Oak Park Moments (5 episodes) Dave Turnidge 02:56:00 

25 New Programs  16:33:00 New Hours 

 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by NMTV Staff 

 

Title Producer Runtime 

Anoka County Board Meeting (7/11/17) T.J. Tronson 00:32:02 

Anoka County Board Meeting (7/27/17) T.J. Tronson 00:36:47 

2017 Blaine Safety Camp T.J. Tronson 00:18:08 

NMTV News (2 episodes) Danika Peterson/Ben Hayle 00:47:59 

Local Decision 2017: File for Office Ben Hayle 00:02:36 

Mayor's Minutes: Circle Pines Summer 
2017 

Trevor Scholl 00:06:11 

Tower Days Trevor Scholl 00:04:24 

Tip 411 Trevor Scholl 00:03:49 

Blaine Traffic Unit Trevor Scholl 00:03:53 

Mayor's MInutes: Centerville Summer 
2017 

Trevor Scholl 00:05:57 

Lino Lakes Car Seat Clinics Trevor Scholl 00:03:57 

Lino Lakes Recycling Trevor Scholl 00:00:48 

Ham Lake Farmers Market Muggle Bath Trevor Scholl 00:04:09 

Blaine Festival  Trevor Scholl 00:03:21 

USA Cup Weekend: Rev SC/Vici 
Barcelona Elite 

Kenton Kipp 01:23:24 

USA Cup Weekend: CNS Fiore/Tempo 
Lightning 

Kenton Kipp 01:13:59 

USA Cup Weekend: NB AJAX/Keliix-Intra Kenton Kipp 01:19:55 



Title cont. Producer cont. Runtime cont. 

USA Cup Weekend: DePere Select/St. 
Charles 

Kenton Kipp 01:09:58 

USA Cup Weekend: RYSA 
United/Tokiwagi Gauken 

Kenton Kipp 01:25:40 

USA Cup Weekend: REV SC/Minot Magic Kenton Kipp 01:21:20 

USA Cup Weekend: MTA Swoosh/SSC 
Diablos 

Kenton Kipp 01:17:34 

USA Cup Weekend: REV SC Black/NLS 
Tornadoes 

Kenton Kipp 01:05:05 

USA Cup Weekend: Menasha 
Swat/Thunder Bay 

Kenton Kipp 01:38:58 

USA Cup Weekend: MTA 2002/SSC 
Diablos 

Kenton Kipp 02:10:52 

USA Cup Opening Ceremonies Kenton Kipp 01:16:46 

USA Cup: Valley United/Lakeshore Kenton Kipp 01:37:00 

USA Cup: REV SC/Eclipse Select Kenton Kipp 01:28:30 

USA Cup: Brainerd Blast/NSSA Ojambo Kenton Kipp 01:46:34 

USA Cup: Victoria 2005/NOSC Blast Kenton Kipp 01:15:33 

USA Cup: BYSC Belugas/Rudbeckianska Kenton Kipp 01:54:24 

USA Cup: EPSC Celtic/Futbol Conultants Kenton Kipp 01:24:57 

USA Cup: TRSA/Rev SC Black Kenton Kipp 01:29:18 

USA Cup: JOTP/Mid-City Lions Kenton Kipp 01:49:20 

USA Cup: Academy SC/SCS Houston Kenton Kipp 01:53:53 

USA Cup: St. Croix Power 
Rangers/Centro U 

Kenton Kipp 01:47:57 

Centerville Fetes Des Lacs Parade Kenton Kipp 00:47:31 

37 New Programs  32:38:46 New Hours 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Programs Produced by City Staff 

 
Title Producer Runtime 

Blaine Planning Commission Meeting 
(7/11/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:47:38 

Blaine Traffic Commission Meeting 
(7/12/17) 

Blaine Staff 00:56:32 

Blaine City Council Meeting (7/13/17) Blaine Staff 03:03:20 

Blaine Natural Resource Conservation 
Board Meeting (7/18/17) 

Blaine Staff 01:14:21 

Centerville City Council Meeting (7/12/17) Centerville Staff 02:20:28 

Centerville City Council Meeting (7/26/17) Centerville Staff 02:40:35 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(7/11/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:49:35 

Circle Pines Utility Commission Meeting 
(7/19/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:12:01 

Circle Pines City Council Meeting 
(7/25/17) 

Circle Pines Staff 00:36:39 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (7/5/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:13:46 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(7/10/17) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:29:08 

Ham Lake City Council Meeting (7/17/17) Ham Lake Staff 00:22:05 

Ham Lake Planning Commission Meeting 
(7/24/17) 

Ham Lake Staff 00:07:22 

Lexington City Council Meeting (7/6/17) Lexington Staff 01:08:11 

Lexington City Council Meeting (7/20/17) Lexington Staff 00:41:03 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting 
(7/10/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 01:38:13 

Lino Lakes Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting (7/12/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 02:37:09 



Title cont. Producer cont. Runtime cont. 

Lino Lakes City Council Meeting 
(7/24/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 00:24:28 

Lino Lakes Environmental Board Meeting 
(7/26/17) 

Lino Lakes Staff 02:04:55 

Spring Lake Park City Council Meeting 
(7/17/17) 

Spring Lake Park Staff 02:06:56 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission 
Meeting (7/24/17) 

Spring Lake Park Staff 01:46:26 

21 New Programs  26:20:51  New Hours 

 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this monthly report please contact 

Heidi Arnson at 763.231.2801 or harnson@northmetrotv.com. 




























	Consent - Mayor's Proclamation - Consititution Week.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Code Enforcement.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Ord & Reso - Resolution Granting Variance for 7733 Lakeview Lane NE.pdf
	Blank Page

	Ord & Reso - Resolution Approving Conditional Use Permit for 1628 County Highway 10 NE.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Engineer's Report.pdf
	Blank Page

	Correspondence - NMTV City Report July 17.pdf
	Some projects that Trevor is working on or is scheduled to produce include:

	Correspondence - NMTV Report July 17.pdf
	NMTV News Highlights
	USA Cup Soccer
	Safety Camp
	Open Studio Night
	Fetes des Lacs Celebration
	City Productions
	Production equipment consulting for cities and schools 

	Blank Page



